

PARENT HANDBOOK

FRISCO REGION

Kids 'R' Kids of Legacy West 5365 Lebanon Rd Frisco, TX 75034 (469) 287-3185

www.kidsrkids.com/legacy-west

Kids 'R' Kids of West Frisco 2660 Main St Frisco, TX 75033 (972) 712-7332 www.kidsrkids.com/west-frisco

HUMBLE REGION

Kids 'R' Kids of Eagle Springs 18410 Timber Forest Dr Humble, TX 77346 (281) 812-3770

www.kidsrkids.com/eagle-springs

Kids 'R' Kids of Kings River 6262 Upper Lake Dr Humble, TX 77346 (281) 812-2882 www.kidsrkids.com/kings-river

Table of Contents

Policy and Procedures	5
Children Served	<u>.</u>
Governing Regulations	5
Licensing	
Inspections	
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Our mission statement	
History	
What Makes Us Different	6
Enrollment and Getting Started	6
Center Information	
Holiday Schedule	
Bad Weather Closing	
Preparing for Your First Day, Week, and Month	
Steps to Signing In and Out Daily	
What We Need From You	
What to Bring to the Center for Your Child	
Toddlers	
Preschool and Pre-K	9
Dressing Your Child for School	
Functional Clothing Functional Shoes	
Please Do No Bring	
Communications	c
Procedures for Parental Notifications	
Daily Communications	
Weekly Communications	10
Monthly Communications	
Semi-Annually	
Parent Conferences	
Policy Changes	10
Photographs	10
Internet access	10
Curriculum	10
Infant - Toddler Adventure and Growth	
Essential Components	11
Breastfeeding	
Love and Laughs	12
Updated 8/30/2023	2

Preschool - Advanced Pre-Kindergarten	12
School Age	13
Curriculum Support	13
Technology	13
Physical Activity	13
Developmental Accomplishment Chart	14
	15
Health and Wellness Policy	16
Immunization Requirements	16
School Age Children	16
Vision and Hearing Screening	
Guidelines for Non-Attendance Due to Illness	
Fever	
Signs of Possible Severe Illness	
Uncontrolled Diarrhea	
Vomiting Pinkeye (conjunctivitis)	
Infestation (i.e. Scabies, head lice)	18
Strep Throat	
Other Illnesses	
Administering Medication	
Medical Emergency	
Child Abuse and Neglect	19
Financial Policy	19
Discount Policies	20
Returned Payment Fees	20
Late Pickup Fees	
Late Payment Fees	
Drop In Fees	
Part-time Attendance	
School Age Tuition Exceptions	
Afternoon Bus Service Fee	
Annual Registration Fee	
Optional Extracurricular Activities*	
Vacation and Absences Policy	
Withdrawal	
Positive Guidance Policy	
Conscious Discipline	23

Biting Policy	23
Behavior Plan	25
Dismissal and Suspension Policy	25
Meals and Snacks	25
Transitions To A New Classroom	26
Transition Meeting	26
What We Need From You	26
Release of Children	26
Custody Situations	27
Transportation	27
School Pick Up List	27
Field Trips	28
Birthday Parties	28
Parent Advisory League	28
Water Activities	29
Severe Weather, Fire, or Emergency Situations	29
Parent Code of Conduct	29
Inappropriate Use of Social Network Sites	
Social Media Policy - School Policies Regarding Social Networks	30
Questions and Concerns	32
Our Management Team	32
#64 Legacy West Management Team	<i>32</i>
#36 West Frisco Management Team	32
#39 Eagle Springs Management Team	32
#2 Kings River Management Team	32

Policy and Procedures

Welcome and thank you for choosing Kids 'R' Kids! Our center is open to you anytime your child is present in the center. We encourage our parents to participate in all special events promoted by the school like field trips, graduation, carnivals, Parent's Night Out, Parent Advisory League, etc. This handbook describes the policies and procedures of all four of our Kids 'R' Kids locations. When there is a disagreement between this handbook and the Minimum Standards as established by the Texas Legislature the more rigid standard will apply.

For the safety of all children, we do request that you make your presence known to the person in charge and cooperate in not disrupting our program.

We review our policies annually and Kids 'R' Kids reserves the right to change or revise any policy, procedure or tuition/fee schedule at any time. Depending upon the nature of the change the notification process may vary. Watch for updates in an email from your schools Director, the monthly newsletter, or a memo/letter to parents.

Children Served

KRK is open to children ages 6 weeks to 12 years old without discrimination based on political affiliation, religion, race, color, sex, mental or physical disabilities as long as the child can adapt to a group child care environment.

Governing Regulations

The governing organization in childcare is the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services. If you would like to see a copy of the standards that govern child care, you may go online to www.dfps.state.tx.us

Licensing

The Texas Department of Family and Protective Services regulate KRK. If you should have any questions, concerns or need resource information related to childcare, check out their web site at www.dfps.state.tx.us. The local telephone number is (214) 583-4253. To report child abuse contact 1-800-252-5400.

Inspections

In an effort to help make sure that we do not overlook any regulations, we are inspected by several city and state organizations. The results of our last inspections are posted in the front lobby. Kids 'R' Kids International also has a Quality Assurance Department that inspects our school on a recurring basis. Inspection reports can be found in the parent area at each school.

Our mission statement

At Kids 'R' Kids Learning Academies we believe that children should be "Hugged First - Then Taught" We strive to provide a nurturing, secure and stimulating environment for young children, in which they can safely explore, learn, play and develop in all areas of growth: physically, emotionally, socially, and intellectually.

We believe in being supportive of our parents, and we welcome their involvement and presence at KRK Learning Academies at all times.

We further believe that in such a caring atmosphere, where parents and teachers have open and honest communication, children thrive and have the opportunity to blossom into responsible, considerate and contributing members of our society.

History

Kids 'R' Kids is a Franchise, started by Pat and Janice Vinson in 1961. They opened their first child care center with 95 children, 11 staff members and a basic philosophy that children should be "Hugged First - Then Taught" This heartfelt, caring philosophy brought great success. In fact, every center they subsequently opened filled to capacity within 90 days. The first Kids 'R' Kids Quality Learning Center was established in May of 1985 under the ownership of Pat and Janice Vinson.

Pat and Janice founded Kids 'R' Kids because of their genuine love for children. With great success and the hope of having an individual involved with each center, they began a franchising company in 1988. Kids 'R' Kids International, Inc. has since blossomed into a large corporation supporting franchises throughout the United States and beyond under the direction of Pat and Janice Vinson to this day. Through their many years of experience in childcare and reaching out with technological advances, Pat and Janice have created a concept that is unique and on the leading edge of the child care industry.

In August of 2005, Kids 'R' Kids of West Frisco located at 2660 Main St., opened under the ownership of Paul and Tammy Huff. Five years later a second Frisco campus, Kids 'R' Kids of Legacy West opened in October of 2010 located at 5365 Lebanon Rd. In December of 2015, the Huffs expanded to Humble acquiring two schools to add to the family, Kids 'R' Kids of Kings River and Kids 'R' Kids of Eagle Springs. Paul and Tammy are involved in the business of all four locations on a daily basis. We are one school with four campuses to proudly serve the families in Frisco and Humble areas.

What Makes Us Different

Kids 'R' Kids is very different from other Preschools in the area for many reasons:

- We give pay raises to our employees based on performance and additional education. The more they
 know the better job they can do in the classroom. Our full-time teachers are paid for the scheduled
 holidays that the school is closed.
- We require 30 training hours annually for each staff member. All staff are CPR and First Aid trained.
- We support our teachers to acquire their CDA with tuition supplements. Our curriculum meets or exceeds state and national requirements.
- Internet accessible closed circuit video system for parents to view classroom activities. Activity room (GYM) for after school students, inclement weather activities and extracurricular activities.
- Large playgrounds divided into age appropriate sections each having their own play structures covered by awnings to protect from the heat of the sun.
- Splash Pad with fun water activities for those hot summer days.
- All meals (breakfast, lunch, AM and PM snack) offered to the children are provided by our school.
- We are part of the Texas Rising Star program. Once accepted into the program, Texas Rising Star
 offers our teachers an abundance of additional training opportunities, the ability to apply for grants to
 add additional education items to our school and more! Each school is assigned a TRS mentor who
 works closely with Directors and teachers to create enhanced learning environments for our children.
 We are thrilled that our schools have been accepted into this program that benefits our children and
 teachers! If you need more information about this program you can visit their website
 www.texasrisingstar.org.

Enrollment and Getting Started

Center Information

Kids 'R' Kids of Legacy West 5365 Lebanon Rd Frisco, TX 75034 (469) 287-3185 | Work (469) 287-3022 | Fax www.kidsrkids.com/legacy-west

Kids 'R' Kids of West Frisco 2660 Main St Frisco, TX 75033 (972) 712-7332 | Work (972) 712-7342 | Fax

www.kidsrkids.com/west-frisco

KRK Frisco Region hours of operation are 6:30am to 6:00pm Monday through Friday, 12 months a year. We have temporarily adjusted our closing to 6:00pm, please see your schools Director for further questions.

Kids 'R' Kids of Eagle Springs 18410 Timber Forest Dr Humble, TX 77346 (281) 812-3770 | Work (281) 812-6909 | Fax www.kidsrkids.com/eagle-springs Kids 'R' Kids of Kings River 6262 Upper Lake Dr Humble, TX 77346 (281) 812-2882 | Work (281) 812-3286 | Fax www.kidsrkids.com/kings-river

KRK Humble Region hours of operation are 6:00am to 6:00pm Monday through Friday, 12 months a year. We have temporarily adjusted our closing to 6:00pm, please see your schools Director for further questions.

Holiday Schedule

- New Year's Eve (close at 2:30pm)
- New Year's Day
- Good Friday/Teacher-In-Service
- Memorial Day
- Independence Day
- Labor Day

- Thanksgiving Day
- Day after Thanksgiving Day
- Christmas Eve
- Christmas Day
- Day after Christmas

If a holiday falls on Saturday, the center will be closed on the Friday prior to the holiday. If a holiday falls on Sunday, the center will be closed on the following Monday. Occasionally depending on how the Christmas holiday falls in the week closing days may change. We may close early the day before the Christmas holidays so please watch for posted notices. We publish the exact closing days at the beginning of the year on a small business card for easy access. Please feel free to pick one up at the front desk.

Bad Weather Closing

If the Independent School Districts in our area close, then KRK might be closed. Please check your email or text messages for a message from our Directors and our social media accounts regarding closing or delayed opening information. Please know that if our schools close due to inclement weather, there will be no tuition discount.

Preparing for Your First Day, Week, and Month

A positive daily transition from home to KRK is imperative. Children react differently to the separation from their parents when coming to school. Some children are full of confidence and are excited to be with other children. Some children are frightened or may seem angry. Others are afraid of being away from mom/dad. After all, no matter how old we are, no one likes to be placed in a room full of strangers. Many behaviors are based on the age of the child, if the child has never been in a pre-school before, or any number of other factors.

If it is your child's first time in pre-school or first time away from you, please be sure to bring your child on the tour with you to help your child become comfortable in his/her new environment.

- 1. Visit the school with your child prior to the first day of school, making sure to point out things that will interest your little one. We can also schedule an appointment for you and your child to meet the teacher.
- 2. Children also feel your vibes. If you are apprehensive, he/she will be apprehensive.
- 3. Start talking about going to a new school as early as possible with excitement and enthusiasm.
- 4. Quickly slide into your routine, being consistent on who brings the child to school every day.

5. Take your child to the classroom, give a big hug and kiss, let them know you will be returning and leave the room quickly (the longer you stay today, the longer you will stay tomorrow, and the next day.)

If your child is upset when you leave the classroom, take it in stride, as they have usually calmed down by the time you make it to your car. REMEMBER- You can call and check on your child at any time or use the internet viewing capability.

We understand the busy schedule of a parent, but we do recommend that your child not be dropped off during nap time. This can cause a disruption to the children in the class and your child as well. If you must drop off during nap time please let a member of management know so we can accommodate.

Due to the impact of COVID, we have implemented pick up and drop off valet service upon request. During morning drop off please meet us at the front door with your child(ren) and their belongings. We ask that you do not leave your child unattended at the front door and wait until a staff member has assisted you before leaving. During afternoon pick up you must give the center a call about 5 minutes before arriving so we can have your child(ren) and their belongings ready at the front for you. If you pull up under our porte cochere we ask that you stand next to your vehicle so our Directors can see you. If you park in a parking spot we ask that you exit your vehicle and come to the front door to pick up your child(ren). We will sign your child(ren) in and out when this service is utilized.

Steps to Signing In and Out Daily

- 1. It is imperative that you sign your child in and out every day through ProCare. This is vital in giving us an accurate count in the classrooms in case of an emergency. Your center Director will show you how to use the system before your first day.
- 2. Feel free to leave your infant at the front with a staff member while you walk the older child back to their class. It is unsafe for infants and toddlers to have older children in the classroom.
- 3. You will receive a summary of your child(ren)s day through email from Tadpoles. Feel free to ask about his/her day at pick up time. We ask that you keep this as brief as possible to ensure that the teacher stays focused on the classroom. If you would like more time with the teacher make an appointment around the end of their shift one day.

What We Need From You

In order to get your child off to a great start there are some things that need to happen.

- 1. All enrollment forms should be completed and turned in prior to your child starting.
- 2. All shots should be up to date and a current copy of the shot record.
- 3. Parent Orientation should be scheduled and completed before your child's first day.
- 4. Set up and train on ProCare, which is our system to check children into and out of the building.
- 5. Watch Me Grow access granted, to set up your account please visit www.watchmegrow.com.
- 6. A Written Statement from your Doctor if your child has a food allergy as to the allergy and what food should replace the food the child is allergic to.
- 7. A written statement from your child's Doctor for outside food to be brought in if your child has restricted dietary need due to religion or culture.

What to Bring to the Center for Your Child

Infants

We will notify you when supplies are running low.

- 1. Pre-made bottles marked w/child's first and last name and date.
- 2. Diapers (enough for the day or an unopened bag which we will mark w/child's initials).
- 3. Change of clothing clearly labeled w/ child's name.
- 4. Baby food or cereal if child is not on a regular menu.
- 5. Diaper cream with a topical ointment form completed and on file.
- 6. Wipes if you prefer a specific brand, or you are welcome to use the wipes provided.

Toddlers

We will notify you when supplies are running low.

- 1. A cup marked w/child's first and last name and date.
- 2. Diapers (enough for the day or an unopened bag which we will mark w/child's initials).
- 3. Change of clothing clearly labeled w/ child's name.
- 4. Baby food or cereal if child is not on a regular menu.
- 5. Diaper cream with a topical ointment form completed and on file.
- 6. Wipes if you prefer a specific brand, you are welcome to use the wipes provided.

Preschool and Pre-K

- 1. At least one complete change of clothing. Please label each article of clothing and any other items with your child's name in permanent ink.
- 2. A small blanket for nap time that fits in the cubby. (Large bedding is difficult for us to store so please bring crib-sized items.)
- 3. Diapers or pull-ups until your child is completely potty trained.
- 4. Optional reusable water bottle labeled and taken home each evening.

Dressing Your Child for School

Functional Clothing

Please dress your child in comfortable, washable play clothes that are appropriate for the weather and able to get dirty. We do lots of messy, fun activities such as gardening, painting, playing in the sand and water table and outdoor adventures. Always keep at least one change of clothes at the school that is appropriate for the weather.

Functional Shoes

Young children are still working on large and small motor skills. They need sturdy footwear that they can run and play in without tripping. Close toed rubber soled shoes that Velcro or zips are preferred. Closed toed water shoes, like water socks or crocs, are required for days when the classroom will use the water park. Sandals or flip flops expose children's toes to injury and therefore we prohibit them, closed toe sandals are acceptable.

Please Do No Bring

- Valuable items that could get lost or damaged in a room full of children. Toys from home. (Unless for Show and Tell)
- Cell Phones or other electronics*- Kids 'R' Kids cannot be responsible for lost or damaged cell phones or other electronics. If a child is using a cell phone or other electronic at Kids 'R' Kids, we will collect it from the child and the parents may pick it up in the office or at the front desk.

*Children may bring them to school as long as we have a singed Electronic Agreement on file, but they may not have them out and use them.

Communications

Procedures for Parental Notifications

Daily Communications

- Daily emails are provided via Tadpoles to parents outlining the events of the day.
- Parents receive an accident report for any minor injury; parents are called regarding any more serious injury, bites, or unusual behavior by a child.
- Be sure to look for posts on social media and our classroom doors.
- Verbal communication is key! Our Directors office has an open door policy, please feel free to stop by.
- Illness postings can be found by the Boo-Boo room that will reflect any illness currently in the school.

Weekly Communications

• A weekly lesson plan will be posted in each classroom on the parent information board.

Monthly Communications

- A monthly calendar is generated to outline the activities of the school.
- A monthly newsletter is published to further explain school related activities and issues, parent and family events, etc.
- A monthly menu is posted for your review.
- All of these forms of communication are posted in the classrooms, on our website and emailed to the current email address we have on file. We also have copies printed upon your request.

Semi-Annually

• A parent-teacher conference will be completed every 6 months.

Parent Conferences

Parents are encouraged to consult with a Director whenever any problem arises regarding the child at home or school.

Telephone and on-site conferences may be scheduled through the office or with the teacher directly. We urge you to take advantage of our parent conferences which are held every spring and fall. It is an important opportunity for parents and staff to share information about your child. Please keep in mind that you may schedule a conference with the Directors or teachers any time throughout the year.

Policy Changes

Policy changes are required from time to time with minor changes being published in the monthly newsletter. Major changes will be emailed or handed out by the front desk. If you ever have a question regarding a policy or procedure please schedule a conference with your schools Director.

Photographs

We take lots of pictures of activities the children participate in daily. These pictures may be printed and posted in a variety of ways or sent out to our parents in the form of an email, Tadpoles, and/or social media. By enrolling your child in the center, you consent that other parents whose children attend KRK may see your child's image. No full names will be used on any photographs leaving the center. You will be required to sign a photo release as a condition of enrollment.

Internet access

KRK offers the Watch Me Grow system for parents to be able to view their child's activities throughout the day with ten, 10 minutes sessions per account. The program is password protected and 2 accounts are included in your tuition.

By enrolling your child at KRK you consent that people with passwords may see your child's image on the Internet. You will be required to sign a photo release as a condition of enrollment.

Curriculum

The Kids 'R' Kids curriculum is built around our philosophy "Children should be hugged first, then taught". This translates into classrooms that provide an environment of:

- Love and acceptance
- Kind words and encouragement Purposeful limits

Educationally stimulating environment

At Kids 'R' Kids we place children into developmentally appropriate classrooms known as Suites. The suites generally have children who are a approximately of 6 to 8 months apart in age.

Infant - Toddler

Kids 'R' Kids knows the importance of nurturing when it comes to babies. Providing plenty of hugs, love, and personal attention is something we include throughout our Infant-Toddler Program. Your baby will enjoy singing, giggling, reading, cuddling and of course Tummy Time in our safe, secure state-of-the-art facility.

- A comforting place that focuses on love and trust
- Sign language techniques to maximize communication skills
- Daily exercises and activities designed to coincide with physical development. Children go outside to
 the designated playground two times a day, weather permitted. If the climatic conditions prevent
 children from playing outdoors, they can visit the gym to exercise.
- Daily reports and weekly lesson plans to keep you informed of your child's development.

Adventure and Growth

Learning centers, with educational and developmentally appropriate toys designed for learning, create a bright and exciting environment for your child. Expanding the imagination and strengthening the muscles has never been more fun!

Weekly lesson plans provide activities designed to develop skills necessary to accomplish developmental milestones. Our extensive Infant-Toddler Sign Language Program, which is known to eliminate frustration for children who have yet to form their verbal vocabulary, introduces age appropriate language skills for non-verbal communication.

The sign language program we implement at Kids 'R' Kids was developed by Joseph Garcia. When he began working as an Interpreter in the late 1970's, he noticed that hearing babies of deaf parents could communicate their needs and desires at a much earlier age than children of hearing parents. Joseph began to research the use of American Sign Language with hearing babies of hearing parents at Alaska Pacific University in 1987. The results were extraordinary. His research showed that hearing babies who are exposed to signs regularly and consistently at six to seven months of age can begin expressive communication by their eighth or ninth month. This process helps to accelerate the acquisition of verbal language as well. Incorporating signs into your daily routine does not require fluency in American Sign Language. Rather, it teaches that even a few simple gestures can make a big difference in empowering and meeting the needs of a child. Parents and caregivers should start slowly by introducing several ASL signs that represent ideas babies can understand, like "more", "eat", and "milk". When babies are able to replace some of the screaming, whining, and crying with a few simple hand gestures, it can dramatically improve their relationships with caregivers and parents.

With each day, more and more people are coming to recognize the power of signing as it changes the way they view and interact with preverbal children.

Essential Components

There are four essential components to our Infant-Toddler program:

- Language development
- Physical development
- Cognitive development
- Social and emotional development

Kids 'R' Kids believes in balancing fun with fitness and learning with laughter. Communicating, crawling, creating and exploring underscore the meaning behind developing the whole child.

Breastfeeding

Families are able to provide pre-made breast milk bottles for their infants while in care. The bottles will be marked with the child's first and last name and a red label to specify that it contains breast milk. We can Updated 8/30/2023

11

provide a quiet space in the classroom for mothers who wish to breastfeed in our schools. A compilation of breastfeeding education is provided to parents, please check the parent area in the center.

Love and Laughs

At this tender age, there's no such thing as too much love, too many hugs, or too many giggles. As babies grow into toddlers, it's imperative to create strong bonds with families and caregivers. At Kids 'R' Kids, you know your child is being loved, hugged and nurtured from the very beginning and as he/she continues to develop. That's the Kids 'R' Kids difference!

Preschool - Advanced Pre-Kindergarten

The educational philosophy of the Kids 'R' Kids Curriculum is based on the theories of Swiss psychologist, Jean Piaget. Piaget believed the importance of play and that children learn best through opportunities that focus on exploring, manipulating, experimenting, and analyzing.

Our complete preschool learning program is designed by professional educators exclusively for Kids 'R' Kids and includes:

- Standards driven, year-round core curriculum
- Integrated subject areas: Language Arts, Math, Science, Social Studies, Geography, and Gardening
- Theme-based units with weekly lesson plans
- Value words in English and Spanish
- Sports and fitness instruction
- ColorSoundation music program for children three and four years of age
- Weekly Spanish instruction
- Sign Language

The lesson plans are formatted into weekly segments. Each week has a main focus with objectives and a value word of the week. The focus and objectives are introduced through group time, daily enrichments, group time reviews and center additions. Additional activities are organized around outdoor fun, rainy day alternatives and special activities.

Group time activities are designed to introduce educational concepts and provide language rich experiences by promoting reading and early literacy. Children will build confidence and social skills through participation. Each classroom is organized into learning stations that offer real-life learning experiences and assist with classroom management. Through the learning centers children are encouraged to make positive choices while teaching organization and responsibility. The learning stations focus the children's attention on theme-based play by defining classroom areas. Children experience "I Can Do It" moments everyday as they explore learning centers.

The Learning Stations:

- Construction and Blocks Station
- Creation Station
- Discovery and Exploration Station
- Imagination and Dramatic Play Station
- Music Station
- Story and Reading Station
- Writing and Alphabet Station
- Number and Math Station

So nowadays, you rarely see children sitting in chairs reciting their A-B-C's and 1-2-3"s. Instead, they focus on real-life, hands-on learning. For example, the teacher might have them "write" the letter "Pp" on the cutout of a pig using glitter, dried beans, and beads.

School Age

Our before and after school program offers the school-age child a welcome break from the structured academic learning environment. The school –age children follow the G.Y.M. curriculum. Our teachers are available for any tutoring your child may need and strengthening study habits in the Homework Center. The School Age Program flows into the Summer Camp Program where a new topic is introduced every summer. Individual and group projects are designed around interesting themes and daily meeting topics. Field trips are provided and tie into the Summer Camp Program, Spring Break, Thanksgiving Break, and Christmas Break.

Curriculum Support

Once implemented, a curriculum becomes a living entity that will change and grow.

Partnership with families is critical to the success of any learning environment. We provide detailed lesson plans, Our Week in Review and year-round family functions to communicate with and involve parents in our school.

We have a Curriculum Director and Educational Consultants on staff at all of our locations that are responsible for curriculum distribution, staff training, observation, follow-up and encouragement for the teachers.

Technology

Activities using TV/video, computer or video games are prohibited for children under the age of two years. TV/video, computer or video games activities are used in our school for children two years and older, and we always ensure that they:

- Are related to the planned activities
- Are age-appropriate
- Do not exceed two hours per day

Physical Activity

Outdoor play is an essential part of a child's development no matter what age! Our schools have large, well equipped playgrounds with age appropriate play structures. Our lesson plan and daily schedule allow for two dedicated times, once in the morning and once in the afternoon, for outside play weather permitting. If there is inclement weather or the temperature is too high we have alternate indoor activities. The benefits of outdoor play include, but are not limited to:

- Enhances health and mental performance
- Creates freedom for children to run, jump, climb, and much more
- Reduces stress levels
- Improves concentration
- Enhances opportunities to learn social skills, overcome fears, and develop a lifelong connection with nature
- Allows children to soak up Vitamin D from the sun

For these reasons, all children who are well enough to attend school will enjoy time outside.

Developmental Accomplishment Chart

Γ		ant	Inf		Toddler								
Age	1-3 mos.	3 \$	mos.	9-12 mos.	12-16 mos.	16-18 mos.	18-24 mos.	798					
S	•				•	•							
Cognitive	Follow objects with eyes.	Looks and Reaches	Able to hold and shake rattle purposefully Pulls toy	Squeeks toy Pushes toy car or train Moves objects	Gets adult to operate toy	Attempts to operate toys	Pushes push toy Sorts shapes with a shape box Completes a 4 piece puzzle	Matches colors Winds up toys Completes 6 piece puzzle					
5			• •										
ranguage	Cooing, gurgling Turns to face source of sounds Cryling, burping, sneezing	Responds to name Associates objects with routines(bottle=feeding) Nakes sounds to interact	Babbles (dada) Recognizes "bye, bye", "mama", "deda"	Responds to music with movement Nods head "yes" Uses few words, such as "mema, "dode"	Follow simple directions (look, come here) Asks for more Says own name Names familiar objects	Points to or names familiar objects Identifies body parts by pointing Identifies family members by pointing	Tels own name identifies mine, yours, me, and you Names family members Names body parts	Identifies basic colors Uses 3 word sentences Says first and last name					
000				•••									
benavioral	Can maintain 5 seconds of eye contact Quieted by being held or talked to smiles	Recognizes strangers Laughs in social play Reaches for a familiar person	Recognizes self in mirror Plays independently with an adult in sight Plays simple social games(pook a boo, pat a cake)	Separation anxiety Gestures to indicate wants Waves bye-bye	Uses caregiver for emotional comfort Crics at the loss of a toy Initiates activity with an adult caregiver	Accepts familiar adult as a caregiver instead of mom Plays independently 15-30min, with an adult in sight	Puts toys away when asked Engages in parallel play	Acts sky with strangers Clings to parent Begins pretend play Attends to a short story					
3	•	• • • •	•			• • •							
Time Motor	Holds abjects	Opens hands Brings hands together Reaches for and grasps objects	Picks up tiny objects (ceresi)	Uses pincher grasp(blumb and index finger) Grasps and holds objects	Stacks 2 blocks	Scribbles with crayon Turns 2-3 book pgs at a time	Draws lines and circles in finger paint Stacks 6 blocks Strings 3-4 large beads Turns door knobs	Opens doors Draws line with crayon Pulls and rolls play dough Ships with scissors					
9													
GLOSS MOTOL	Turns head Lifts head shortly Props up on forearms	Holds head up in supported sitting Roles from back to stomach	Touches hands to feet Brings feet to mouth	Sits independently Crawls Pulls self to standing Rolls ball	Stands independently Kneets independently Takes step Crawls up steps	Throws small ball Seats self in chair Climbs on and off adult furniture Walks up steps with support	Kicks a ball Welks backwards a few steps Runs several steps (looking down)	Jumps with both feet Walks up and down steps Rides a push tricycle					
9	•	• • •		• •									
active diatrina	Sucks and swellows	Reaches for bottle Opens mouth during feeding	Holds battle	Feeds self with fingers Litts arms for dressing	Holds oup with 2 hands to drink Shows discomfort over solled pants	Identifies edible and non-edible objects Irritates simple grooming such as brushing hair or teeth(not effectively)	Sis on potty chair with assistance Undresses with help Pulls pants up	Indicates the need to porty Uses a napkin Uses a fork to eat Oheld in fist?					

•		•		•	•		9-12 •		•	•	•••		•	6-8 W			Syrs •					- sul-			•		3yrs •
Recognizes errors in	Multiplies 2 and 3	Understands fractions	numbers to the	Rounds 2 or 3 digit	Adds numbers,	quarters	Divides wholes into halves, thirds, and	in a story	passages Identifies characters, main ideas, and plot	Reads simple	Understands money Measures with a ruler	order	Writes numbers in	Tells time using a clock	Adds using numbers 0-5	emotions) Writes letters and	Starts to understand abstract ideas (death,				structures	Counts objects (1-10)	annonco congo	imitates source	Sorts big and little	puzzle	Completes 12 piece
		•			•	•	•				•		•	•		•	•				•				•	٠	•
	diameter street	grade level	sertences	and adjectives in	Identifies nouns works	Alphabetizes to the	spoken sentences				rhyming words	their definitions	Associates words with	Retails story in own words		Names materials needed for an activity	step directions				Names all body parts	Names textures		with, what questions	Asks who, where, when,	Sings songs	Names Shapes
			•	٠		•	•	Г		•	•		٠	٠		•	٠.	Г		٠	•				•		٠
	Control of the second s	Cautious amund strangers	Sensitive to the feelings of	Can participate on a team	responses responses	Assesses social situations to	Seeks help for handling conflicts			Understand rules	Has a close friend of same sex	errors	Admits responsibility for	Works in small groups for 20min		Helps adults with simple tasks	Able to talk about feelings Plays games with rules		sympathy for others	Shows concern and	Plays dress up	Sings and dances to music	minutes	Greets laminar people	Engages in cooperative play	without crying	Separates from parents
						٠	٠						٠	٠			• •			٠		• •			٠	٠	٠
						Uses hole punch	Collates and staples 4 pages					1/4in of boarders	Cuts out figures within	Uses clothes pin to pick up small objects		outline pictures	Outs out magazine or			Cuts and pastes	picture	Poids papers			Traces shapes	Uses a pencil grip	Outs with scissors
					•		٠				٠.		٠	٠			٠.			٠		٠.		•	•	٠	٠
				oppo	Able to do 10 push	running, and skipping	Changes gait easily between walking,				Jumps rope Walks backwards	jacks	Does 10 jumping	Walks heel to toe on balance beam		for 5 seconds	Skips Stands on one foot			Pumps legs to swing	tricycle	Hops on one foot		ruces a creyor	Walks heel to be	Runs	Walks on tiptoes
				٠			•)	• •		•	•				٠	•		•	•	٠	٠
	The state of the s	making choices	independence and	Gains more	longer periods of	independently for	Shows ability to care for self				and school	for chores at home	more responsibility	Able to dress self Able to assume		Ties shoes	Fastens buttons, buckles, and snaps	instead of fist	with fingers	shoes	Puts on socks and	Fastens large buttons and snaps	independence in toileting	Gaine more	Puts on shirt	Wipes up spills	Puts toys away

Health and Wellness Policy

Immunization Requirements

Each child enrolled at KRK must meet applicable immunization requirements specified by the Texas Department of Health. This applies to children in early care from birth through school age. The documentation must be validated by a physician or other health-care professional with a signature or rubber stamp, and include the child's name and birth date, the number of doses and vaccine type, and the month, day and year the child received each vaccination. This documentation may be the original record or a photocopy and must be on file at the center prior to the start date.

Any exemptions from the immunization requirements must meet criteria specified by the Texas Department of Health. Below is a copy of the Texas Department of Health immunization chart. For more information, check out the Texas Department of Health immunization information at www.dshs.state.tx.us/immunize. Kids 'R' Kids of Legacy West, Kids 'R' Kids of West Frisco, Kids 'R' Kids of Eagle Springs, and Kids 'R' Kids of Kings River do not require staff to receive annual immunizations.

2021 Recommended Vaccinations for Infants and Children (birth through 6 years)

Birth	1 month	2 months	4 months	6 months	12 months	15 months	18 months	19-23 months	2-3 years	4-6 years	
НерВ	НерВ НерВ				He	рВ					
		RV	RV	RV							
		DTaP	DTaP	DTaP		DT	āP			DTaP	
		Hib	Hib	Hib	Н	ib					
		PCV13	PCV13	PCV13	PCV13						
		IPV	IPV		IPV						
						Int	fluenza (Yearly) <u>*</u>				
					МІ	MMR					
					Vari	Varicella					
						Неј	pΑ <u>§</u>				

Note: If your child misses a shot, you don't need to start over. Just go back to your child's doctor for the next shot. Talk with your child's doctor if you have questions about vaccines.

Footnotes

*Two doses given at least four weeks apart are recommended for children age 6 months through 8 years of age who are getting an influenza (flu) vaccine for the first time and for some other children in this age group.

[§]Two doses of HepA vaccine are needed for lasting protection. The first dose of HepA vaccine should be given between 12 months and 23 months of age. The second dose should be given 6 months after the first dose. All children and adolescents over 24 months of age who have not been vaccinated should also receive 2 doses of HepA vaccine.

If your child has any medical conditions that put him or her at risk for infection or is traveling outside the United States, talk to your child's doctor about additional vaccines that he or she may need.

School Age Children

When the child's records are on file at a public or private school, KRK will have the parent sign our School Record Sign-Off Form verifying the immunization record is on file, as well as the address of the school at which the health record may be obtained if necessary.

Vision and Hearing Screening

In compliance with the special Senses and Communication Disorders Act, Texas Health and Safety Code, Chapter 36, KRK requires children to have a screening or a professional examination for possible vision and hearing problems. Children, who are enrolled for the first time, four years of age or older, must be screened within the first 120 days of enrollment.

Children who are in the first, third, or fifth grade must complete a screening or examination within the school year. You may sign a statement for our files stating that your child's screening is current and on file at either the public or private school they attend. This statement can be found in our enrollment packet and includes the name, address and telephone number of the school.

Guidelines for Non-Attendance Due to Illness

If your child should become ill, we ask that you make alternate arrangement for care. If your child is sent home due to illness or fever they must be out the next business day unless a doctor's note is provided. Because the health and welfare of all our children is a concern, we are unable to care for children who are ill. The following is an outline of children that are too sick to attend school; this is not intended to be a comprehensive list but to cover the most common issues.

Fever

Section 746.3601 of the Texas Minimum Standards for Licensed Child Care Centers defines the admission policies for children with a fever. 746.3601 states that a child may not be allowed admission if they have an oral temperature of 100°. Kids 'R' Kids normally uses an ear registration thermometer whose readings are commonly accepted as oral temperatures. If a child is sent home with a fever, he/she may not return to the center for until they have been fever free for 24 hours, without medication.

Fever over 100° F

Parents will be notified by phone call to pick up their child. We will make every attempt to notify the parents by calling all of the phone numbers we have on file, leaving a voice mail on each number. If the parents are not available to be reached, we will start calling the alternate contacts that are listed in the files. We will continue calling until we actually speak to a person. Children with fevers over 100° F will not be allowed to stay at the school. They must be picked up and cared for by a parent or emergency contact. If we cannot establish contact with a parent or alternate contact, we may at our discretion transport the child to emergency medical care if we believe medical attention is necessary. We ask that once a parent is notified, the child is picked up within a 30 minute time frame if possible.

Signs of Possible Severe Illness

Includes unusual lethargy, irritability, persistent crying, difficulty breathing, mouth sores with drooling, a rash with or without fever, behavior changes or other unusual signs.

Uncontrolled Diarrhea

If a child has two or more loose, watery stools within a business day, they must be picked up from the center. The child may return to the center when the diarrhea has subsided for 24 hours.

Vomiting

If a child vomits and it is determined that it was not from a normal cough or clearing of the throat, they must be picked up from the center. The child may return to the center when the vomiting has subsided for 24 hours.

Pinkeye (conjunctivitis)

Children must be excluded form care until it has been 24 hours since the antibiotic therapy for the pinkeye has begun.

Infestation (i.e. Scabies, head lice)

Children with lice must be excluded from care until hair has been completely treated. Hair must be totally free of "nits" or eggs.

Strep Throat

Children diagnosed with strep throat must be excluded from care until 24 hours after treatment has begun and 24 hours after fever is gone without the use of fever reducing medication.

Other Illnesses

If your child exhibits signs of illness while at the center, you will be contacted immediately and asked to pick up your child as soon as possible. When contacted by the school, you will be asked to provide an estimated time of arrival. This is for your child's information and comfort. Please try to be as accurate as possible.

We reserve the right to request a doctor's note for a child to return to our care.

Administering Medication

KRK will give your child medication as a service to you. We do however take this job very seriously and must ask for complete cooperation from the parents in following the guidelines as outlined by the Texas Department of Human Services, Standard 8200.

All medication is to be checked in at the front desk with a member of management. No one else is allowed to check in medication. A form must be completed for each medication to be administered.

Medications are given at 11:00 am and 3:00 pm only for medications requiring administration three or more times per day. If a medication is only required once or twice a day, it is our policy that parents administer medication at home.

Medication forms must be filled out completely and include the following:

- 1. Full name of the child to whom the medicine was prescribed.
- 2. Name of the medication.
- 3. Start and end date, time, and amount of medication to be administered; and
- 4. Name (not initials) of staff administering the medication.

The medication to be administered to the child must have written parental permission and be given as stated on label directions, or as amended by a physician.

Any medication brought by parents for their child must be as follows:

- 1. In the original container.
- 2. Labeled with the child's full name.
- 3. Labeled with the date.
- 4. Directions to administer the medication must be clear.
- 5. Prescribed medication must include the name of the physician prescribing the medication.
- 6. Over-the-counter medication will be signed in and given only in the dosage recommended on the container and with a note from the child's doctor.
- 7. Notes must be updated monthly by the child's physician to ensure that dosage recommendations are accurate.
- 8. We prefer that medication is not brought to the center on an "as needed" basis except for fever reducers and epi-pens.

Medical Emergency

If a child becomes ill, injured, or has an adverse reaction to prescribed medications while at the center, the parent(s) or emergency contact person will be notified immediately. If it is necessary to seek immediate medical attention for a child, the child will be transported to:

Frisco Region Baylor Medical Center 5601 Warren Pkwy Frisco, TX 75034 (214) 407-5322 Humble Region Kingwood Medical Center 22999 US-59 N Humble, TX 77346 (281) 384-8000

A copy of the child's emergency medical permission forms as well as the health information on file will accompany the child.

In the event of an occurrence of a communicable disease as outlined by the Department of Health, written notification will be posted outside of the "Boo Boo" room within 24 hours or the next working day.

Child Abuse and Neglect

Child abuse can occur in all families and communities. Abuse can be physical, such as when a child is injured on purpose or mistreated sexually. Emotional abuse includes placing excessive or unrealistic demands on a child. Verbal abuse includes name calling, unnecessary criticism and excessive yelling-all of which damage a child's self-esteem. Physical and emotional bullying by other children also can be abusive. Child neglect includes failing to provide a child with food, shelter, supervision, education or medical care.

Children rely on adults to report suspected abuse. Child victims may be afraid to tell someone they are being abused. Many children mistakenly believe they deserve the abuse. If a child tells us about abuse, it is our responsibility to pay attention.

There are various characteristics that suggest child abuse and neglect. While these signs may indicate other problems, they can help you determine if abuse or neglect is occurring.

Child-related signs of possible abuse or neglect can include, but are not limited to:

- Suspicious burns, bruises, injuries
- Often tired, hungry, or not clean
- The child does not receive vision, hearing, dental, or medical care when needed
- Extreme aggression and/ or passivity
- Lags in development Afraid of parents or adults
- Unpleasant, demanding
- Often does not obey
- Mood swings
- Unusually shy, avoids other children and adults
- Avoids physical contact
- Apt to seek affection from any adult
- Reports being hurt or abused
- Unusual sexual awareness or behavior

Remember it is the responsibility of anyone who suspects child abuse to report and document immediately. If we suspect child abuse in any form, it is our responsibility to report this to CPS.

In order to help prevent and respond to abuse and neglect of children our staff are required annual training including training with a focus on prevention, recognition, and reporting of child abuse and neglect.

Financial Policy

Tuition is charged for your child's space and is due whether or not your child is present. Since the expenses of KRK are based on fixed enrollment levels, the center cannot give credit for days

absent, vacation, or holidays (unless a vacation request has been approved, please see the Vacation and Absences Policy).

All tuition and charges are due in advance. The current tuition rate will be charged to your account on Monday for the week. All accounts are set up on an ACH withdrawal program. When filling out your child's paperwork, please fill out the ACH form in its entirety and attach a voided check to the top of the form. Tuition is due and deducted from your account or credit card weekly. If you need other arrangements see your Director.

A security agreement is required when the child is enrolled. A credit card is normally required as a part of the security agreement. If you do not have a credit card this requirement may be waived by payment of a security deposit of two weeks tuition.

Applicants authorize KRK, or its agents or representatives, to obtain such credit reports as KRK deems reasonable and necessary, and regardless of whether the credit reports are obtained before, during, or after applicant's enrollment, if any, at the center.

If the tuition for your child and all accrued late fees are not paid by 6:30 pm on the following Friday your child will be dropped and will not be allowed to attend until full tuition is paid including late fees and a new registration fee.

Discount Policies

Kids 'R' Kids offer three discount programs, if you qualify for more than one you may choose one. Discounts are not cumulative. The default discount will be the one most advantageous to the customer.

- A discount of 5% of the oldest child's tuition is provided for families with two children enrolled (This discount does not apply to students enrolled in the Before School Only class or for children under 2 years of age).
- For families with three or more children a discount of 10% of total tuition is provided.
- If you are a teacher in the local ISD school system, a policeman, a fireman, paramedic or on active duty in the armed services you are eligible for a 10% discount on the oldest child's tuition (age 2 and above).
- We are part of the Child Care Subsidy program offered through the Workforce Solutions. If you need more information about this program you can call at 1-888-469-5627 or visit their website www.wrksolutions.com

If your spouse is on active duty in a combat zone, please ask to contact the owner.

Returned Payment Fees

If a payment is returned from the bank a \$30 NSF fee is charged. If this is the first returned payment, we will represent the payment. If the represented payment is returned an additional \$30 NSF fee, plus late fees will be charged until the payment is received in full. We will require money order payments for a 90-day time period. Once the 90 days are up you can return to ACH payments. However, if there is another returned payment the account will be required to be paid by money order only. Money orders will be due on the Friday before the week of service.

Returned checks that are not paid will be sent to the Collin County District Attorney, or our own attorney, for prosecution and turned over to any commercial NSF reporting service deemed necessary.

Check payments are only accepted for the initial enrollment fee. All weekly transactions must be made via ACH.

Late Pickup Fees

KRK expects parents to respect and abide by our hours of operation. We recognize that it is not always possible to predict work schedules or traffic. If it is not possible to pick up your child by 6:00 pm we ask that you call us NO LATER than 5:45 pm so we can tell your child when to expect you so they don't worry.

If you have called by 5:45 pm there will be a charge of \$10.00 for the first 5 minutes and \$1 per minute after 6:00 pm payable upon arrival. This may be waived by the Business Director or a center Director.

If there is no phone call by 5:45 pm there will be a charge of \$25.00 for the first 5 minutes and \$1 per minute after 6:00 pm payable upon arrival. This fee may not be waived.

If you have not contacted us by 7:00 pm our first assumption is that something accidental in nature has occurred. In this case we will make every effort possible to contact parents, guardians or other adults who have permission to pick up a child. If we are not successful in contacting anyone we will first contact the police and request that they attempt to determine if something accidental has occurred and to assist us in locating a guardian who has permission to take custody of your child. Only as a LAST resort will we contact CPS to come and take custody of your child. We are not licensed for after-hours care, the state has a special license for this, and our employees are not allowed to take custody of your child by removing them from the premises.

If there are three or more incidents within one quarter, your child may be dropped and not allowed to return without the Directors permission and a new registration fee will be applied.

Late Payment Fees

First Week

A late fee of \$25 will be charged to your account if tuition is not paid by 12:00 pm on Tuesday. An additional charge of \$5 per day will be assessed for each day after Tuesday that tuition is late.

Second Week

If tuition is not brought up to date by the following Tuesday at noon your credit card will be charged as per the security agreement for all outstanding tuition and late fees. If the credit card charge is denied, you will be notified and an additional \$25 late fee will be charged. You will be contacted by management to make arrangements for payment. Other collection methods may also be involved.

Drop In Fees

Drop In care is available as openings allow are available in the particular classroom, refer to our current tuition sheet for rates. We do require notice 24 hours in advance of drop in care.

Part-time Attendance

Part-time programs are available only as openings allow for children enrolled in Suites 250 and older. The part time program is primarily made available for children to transition into a full time program smoothly. Special exceptions may be made on a case by case basis. Tuition discounts of any kind are not allowed for part-time students.

School Age Tuition Exceptions

If a child attends for a full week the tuition charge is equal to the current summer program rate. Tuition for the week of Thanksgiving and Christmas will be the current Before/After School rate. Tuition for the week of New Year's or spring break will be the current Summer Camp rate. Please keep in mind that if your child is on the after school care program only additional fees may apply.

Afternoon Bus Service Fee

If your school age child is not riding the bus in the afternoon we do require notification of no transportation required by 2pm the day of. If you have called the center by 2pm there are no additional fees. If you have not called the center by 2pm to notify of no transportation required the fees are as follows:

1st offense results in a reminder to call the center.

2nd offense results in a warning that the next offense will result in a fee.

3rd offense results in a non-refundable, \$25 fee.

Annual Registration Fee

This registration fee is charged upon initial enrollment per child, refer to our current tuition sheet for rates. An annual enrollment fee per child is charged at the beginning of the local ISD school year, due the week of the first day of school. The initial registration fee and annual registration fee are both non-refundable.

Optional Extracurricular Activities*

There are some optional programs that your child may wish to be a part of. There is an additional charge for these programs. However, Spanish, ColorSoundation, and Gym Station are included in our core curriculum and included in your tuition. Please see a center Director for a current list of parent paid opportunities.

*Optional Extracurricular Activities have been suspended, please see your schools Director for further questions.

Vacation and Absences Policy

Vacation time is 2 weeks per year after the first year of enrollment. Vacation time may only be accrued by children who are enrolled full-time at KRK for a consecutive year (i.e.: 2 weeks' vacation available after 1st year of enrollment). Vacation request must be submitted 2 weeks in advance to receive credit. Please see the front desk for a Vacation Request Form. If you have been enrolled for a consecutive six months you may borrow one week of vacation, however if you leave before you have been here a full year this week will be charged to your account and may not be used in lieu of notice. A vacation day consists of a child being absent for a full day and the tuition is waived for that day. Children must be absent from KRK in order to receive a vacation credit. Vacation time must be applied for by completing a vacation form at the front desk. These vacation weeks will only be approved and credited to accounts that are current. If a student applies for vacation during a holiday week, they will still have to use vacation days if the school is closed for the holiday. Vacation weeks do not accumulate and will not carry over from year to year (a year is based on an enrollment year). If your child is not eligible for a vacation credit, you must pay your tuition regardless of your child's presence in the center or not.

Withdrawal

You may withdraw your child at any time for any reason. We require a two weeks' notice of your child's last day of attendance. Notice must be given to a member of management by filling out a withdrawal form. Notifying your child's teacher does not satisfy the requirements of this policy. Tuition is paid in advance; if notice is not given or tuition is not paid in advance your credit card may be charged.

Positive Guidance Policy

At KRK we strive to develop meaningful relationships with each child. We want each child to feel loved and have a strong self-worth.

We understand to accomplish this goal it is imperative that the children are given positive guidance to ensure self-discipline. We believe that children will develop self-discipline and control when they are treated with dignity and respect, when they are given clear consistent, fair limits for classroom behavior.

With the older children we work to help them set and understand their own limits and the consequences of the decisions they make. We understand the importance of developing a warm and positive learning environment where children's feelings are validated, and positive behavior is always encouraged.

In addition, KRK adheres to the discipline policy of the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services Minimum Standards which states:

- 1. Individualized and consistent for each child.
- 2. Appropriate to the child's level of understanding; and
- 3. Directed toward teaching the child acceptable behavior and self-control.

A teacher may only use positive methods of discipline and guidance that encourages self-esteem, self-control, and self-direction. This is done by:

- 1. Using praise and encouragement of good behavior rather than focusing only upon unacceptable behavior.
- 2. Reminding a child of behavior expectations daily by using clear, positive statements.
- 3. Redirecting behavior using positive statements.
- 4. Using brief supervised separation from the group, when appropriate for the child's age and development, which is limited to one minute per year of the child's age. Separation should only be used after 2 or more attempts at re-direction are made.

Conscious Discipline

Conscious Discipline is a social-emotional learning program designed by Dr. Becky Bailey. The program supports first teaching ourselves about self-control and self-regulation, and then teaching children. It helps us see how we respond to upset and understand our emotions, and how to regulate ourselves when we are triggered. In short, it teaches us how to be conscious as adults of what we are saying to children, and what behaviors we are modeling.

What is really wonderful is that it is an inside-out program that teaches adults to manage their own upset, sadness, happiness, and anger. In turn, it teaches us how we can teach children to manage their own upset when triggered and understand their own feelings.

Biting Policy

Biting is a natural developmental stage that many children go through. It is usually a temporary condition that is most common between 12 and 24 months of age. However, this habit can begin in some children as soon as children get teeth or in children as old as three to four. This center's biting policy addresses the actions that we will take if a biting incident occurs.

Toddlers bite other toddlers for many different reasons. A child might be teething or overly tired and frustrated. He or she might be experiencing or trying to get the attention of the teacher or his peers. Toddlers have verbal skills that have not quite developed and are by nature very impulsive without a lot of self-control. Sometimes biting can occur for no apparent reason. Our teachers encourage children to "use their words" if they become angry or frustrated. The teachers will maintain close and constant supervision of the children at all times. Children bite other people for different reasons, depending on their age.

From 5 to 7 months of age, children may bite when they feel discomfort around their mouths, such as when they are teething. Most often they bite their caregivers. Sometimes a young baby bites his or her mother during breast-feeding.

From 8 to 14 months of age, children may bite when they are excited. Most often they bite a caregiver or another child close to them.

From 15 to 36 months of age, children may bite when they are frustrated or want power or control over another person. Usually they bite other children. Less often, they bite their caregivers.

After age 3, children may bite when they feel powerless or scared, such as when they are losing a battle of wills or think that someone is going to hurt them. Biting at this age may be a sign that a child has problems with expressing feelings or self-control.

Our schools will do everything we can to try and prevent bites from occurring as well as helping any child that has picked up this type of behavior. We feel that is our job as teachers and educators to work as diligently as possible to provide the very best for all children involved. Please know that the safety of the children in our care is always our primary concern.

Our policy is as follows:

- If your child bites three times in one day (as long as the skin on the other person is not broken) then the child will be sent home for the remainder of the day. We suggest that the parents get a book to read to the child to try and reinforce the idea that children should not bite and that biting hurts. This tactic is taken for bites that are unprovoked. We will use discretion for each bite to be fair for each situation. For example, if a child shows an act of aggression towards another (grabs a toy, hits or pushes) and a bite occurs as a result of the action, the decision to send home the "biter" will be at the discretion of the management team. The goal is to prevent biting and help to change behavior, not to send children home.
- If at any time the skin is broken due to a bite, then the child will be asked to go home immediately for the remainder of the day.
- If biting is unable to be managed or curtailed or your child has been sent home three times, then it may be necessary for the child to take a "break" from class for a week. Although we realize this can be an inconvenience for parents, we feel that this additional step must be made in order to protect the other children in the class. This is not something that our school likes to do and please know that this would be a last resort.

Things that our school does to minimize biting in the preschool setting:

- Provide lots of language such as "biting hurts" and "we use our teeth for food."
- Provide frozen teething rings for those that have the need to chew on something.
- Provide books for the teachers to read to the children to reinforce that teeth are not for biting.
- Provide supportive information to parents of the "biter" and the child who received the bite.
- Provide teacher training multiple times per year so that teachers are informed on ideas on how to prevent bites from happening.
- The biter will be shadowed so that a teacher is in close proximity whenever possible.
- Teachers will provide lots of encouragement to a "biter" who displays positive behavior.
- Staff should evaluate the daily routine and determine if it is meeting the needs of the child.
- At times, we consider an early transition to the next classroom of a child "stuck" in a biting behavior pattern for a change of environment.

In the event that a biting incident does occur, our school will do the following:

- The child who received the bite will receive comfort and immediate attention to the bite. The area of skin where the bite is located is looked at and appropriate medical attention given. (ex. ice applied, cleansed with soap and water)
- The teacher will then work with the "biter" to learn a different behavior. The "biter" is told in a firm voice, "No bite! Biting hurts!" The "biter" is shown the bite mark made on the other child and reminded once again, "No bite, biting hurts!"
- The teacher will then remind the child to use their words instead of using the teeth and give ideas of what teeth are used for. "Teeth are used for eating food."
- An accident report is filled out for the child who received the bite
- An incident report is filled out for the "biter" so that the school can keep a record of the biting habits
 and so the parent is notified. These reports will be signed by the teacher, a member of management,
 and the parent then filed.
- A member of management is called so that the "biter" can be addressed by an adult that is different than the teachers in the room. This can tend to help the behavior subside as well.

When managers approach parents about the fact that their child is biting, we ask them to work with us to help their child stop this behavior. If parents are not willing to work with us or don't take the problem seriously, we would have to ask that the family find another school. As stated earlier, this is never a choice that we like to make but this problem will never be solved unless we all work together. As stated earlier, the safety of the children in our care is always our first priority.

Behavior Plan

If a child shows challenging behaviors, we will initiate communication with the parents and establish a log to record all behaviors and actions. We will share the log with the parents and work together on strategies and a detailed plan to address the behavior. The behavior plan will be customized for each child and will list the behaviors we wish to focus on and how to achieve our goals. We will try different alternatives with the purpose of changing the behavior and being able to accomplish the objectives of the program. If a child's behavior becomes so disruptive that they require one on one care, the school may deem it necessary for the family to find alternate care.

Dismissal and Suspension Policy

The staff will work with each child to fulfill the needs of that child and every effort will be made to provide a positive learning experience. Special needs will be accommodated when possible.

KRK reserves the right to ask parent(s) to make alternative arrangements for care if it is determined that a child's needs cannot be met, or the child has not adjusted to group care provided by the center. In the event behavior becomes disruptive to the program or becomes a problem that poses an unsafe situation for the child or other children in the class, alternative arrangements will be required.

If you, as a parent, are uncooperative in completing and returning forms, fail to pay your tuition on time, fail to follow any state or county regulations, or fail to follow any KRK Policy or Procedure it may be necessary to dismiss your child(ren) from care.

The two weeks' notice is waived if your child is dismissed from our school. We will work with you to provide a smooth transition to alternative arrangements if possible.

Meals and Snacks

All snacks and meals provided by KRK meet or exceed the requirements of the USDA guidelines. A rotating menu is planned and may be picked up at the parent information area in the front lobby, is posted on our web page, and emailed at the beginning of each month.

Meal times can vary due to daily circumstances but generally KRK offers the following dining opportunities:

Breakfast- from business open to 8:30am

AM Snack- typically 9:00am Lunch- 11:00am to 12:00pm

PM Snack- after nap time, typically 2:30pm or 3:00pm

Snack for School Age children- when they return from ISD school

KRK provides a vegetarian, vegan, beef-free alternative, and dairy-free alternative. **No nut products of any kind are allowed in the school and no peanut products are ever used in meal preparation.** All liquids and food hotter than 110° F are kept out of reach of children.

For infants who require bottles and baby food, it is the responsibility of the parent to bring prepared formula placed in bottles and labeled with each child's name, or bring empty sanitized bottles and sign the consent to Updated 8/30/2023

25

use the formula we provide (only at our Kings River campus). Breastmilk bottles need to come ready to drink from home, we will label the bottle and properly warm it before feeding. The teachers will work with the parents to make the determination as to when your child is ready to begin enjoying some of the table foods.

KRK will provide the meals and snacks when the children can begin to eat chopped up food that is offered to the remainder of the school. At this point no outside food is allowed. We strictly enforce this policy due to the children who attend our school who have various food allergies. If your child has a severe food allergy and cannot eat what is on our menu due to dietary restrictions, we must have a doctor's note on file stating exactly what the food allergy is. Any food that is brought into the building must be "ready to serve" and not require heating, with the exception of bottles.

You may bring in store bought items that are still in their original packaging for birthdays and class parties. Please remember that there are no nuts allowed in the building at any time for any purpose. This includes items brought in for teachers and snacks brought in a lunch box from school.

Transitions To A New Classroom

As your child grows and matures, he/she will become ready to transition to a new classroom. We look at several factors when making a determination if a child is ready or not. Some components of the decision are based on maturity level, developmental level, the age of your child and space in the classroom. Transitioning a child is a decision that should be made by teachers, parents, and the administrative staff. Although we have a plan for transitioning a child, we also observe the child's behavior during the process and either lengthen the transition time or decrease the time taken to make the change. If the child is struggling, the transition cycle may be rolled into a two-week period. If the child is happy and content in the new classroom, he/she is not required to return to the old classroom.

Transition Meeting

We will arrange a transition meeting to help acquaint everyone if desired. The outgoing teachers can give vital information to the incoming teacher. He/She can also review with the parents the accomplishment and progress they have seen in the child.

The incoming teachers can review with the parent the schedule of the classroom, the expectation of what the children will be learning and the rules that apply to that particular classroom.

What We Need From You

As with anything, children feed off of the vibes of their parents. Begin talking to your child about moving to the next room in a positive manner. Let them see your excitement and they will have a much easier time in the transition process.

Release of Children

We want to do everything we can to keep the children in our care safe. We are very cautious about releasing your child to someone other than yourself. It is important to give KRK proper information on who is allowed to pick up your child.

Everyone who is on your pick up list will be added in our computer system and each person is required to show their driver's license or another form of identification. Even though a person is on your pick up list, it is imperative that you notify the front desk with the proper information as to who will be coming. We must have your permission for them to pick up your child. It is very important to keep your pick up information current. Please email you Directors if someone needs to be added or removed from your list.

Custody Situations

From time to time the staff at KRK is placed in a difficult situation regarding a custody dispute. Without a court order, KRK cannot deny a parent access to his or her child.

If a custody document is present, KRK will notify the custodial parent of any contact made by the unauthorized parent. KRK will also notify the authorities, no exceptions.

Staff Members will be instructed not to put themselves or the other children in jeopardy to mediate a family dispute or to attempt to enforce a court order.

If a parent chooses to leave a child in the care of KRK with a court order in force, the custodial parent will be required to sign an acknowledgement stating the center's inability to physically obstruct a hostile effort to take the child from the center.

In the case of joint custody with limited visitation, each parent must sign an acknowledgment waiver to that effect.

Non-custodial parents cannot act as parent volunteers on field trips or other center events without written permission from the custodial parent. Non-Custodial parents may not be afforded the same privileges as custodial parents based upon individual circumstances and management discretion.

Transportation

At KRK we provide transportation to and from school and on field trips for children ages four and up. The children are transported on our busses, we do not use vans for transportation of children. These air-conditioned buses come complete with seat belts that adjust to each child's size.

We follow all the safety procedures outlined by the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services and carry specific equipment on our vehicles, to include:

- 1. A list of all children being transported.
- 2. Emergency medical transport and treatment authorization forms for each child being transported.
- 3. The name of the Center and telephone number on the outside of the bus, the director and the telephone number inside the bus.
- 4. Parent's names, telephone numbers, and emergency telephone numbers for each child being transported.
- 5. A fire extinguisher approved by the local or state fire marshal, secured in the passenger compartment and accessible to the adult occupants.
- 6. A first-aid kit.
- 7. The driver must have a current commercial driver's license as well as a current CPR and First Aid certification.

Buses receive regular maintenance and these records are available for inspection upon request.

School Pick Up List

KRK picks up from the elementary schools assuming there are at least three students attending KRK. Please ask management for a list of schools we provide AM and PM transportation for.

If your child will be riding the bus to school, they will need to arrive at KRK no later than 7:00 am. If your child does not need to be picked up after school, it is the responsibility of the parent to notify the center no later than 2:00 pm. If your child is not transported to school in the morning you will still need to notify us if we do

not need to pick up in the afternoon. Failing to notify the school if your child does not need PM pick up can cause serious delays. Please see the Afternoon Bus Service Fee section for related fees.

Field Trips

Field trips are such a great part of learning. There are so many aspects of our community that assist our children in the learning and exploring process.

Field Trip Permission Forms must be signed and dated for each field trip, or your child will not be permitted to attend. The field trip permission form will be available at least 48 hours prior to the date of the field trip. The form will outline the place, date, time of departure, location, special instructions or items to bring, and the anticipated time of arrival back at the center.

For Summer Camp participants you will be required to sign a permission form for all field trips at enrollment. If you don't want your child to participate in a specific field trip and would like them to stay at the school, please see the front desk.

- 1. Emergency Medical Consent forms and Emergency Contact information for each child will be taken on the field trip.
- 2. Teachers must have a written list of all children on the field trip and must check the list frequently to account for the presence of all children.
- 3. Teachers must have a first-aid kit immediately available on field trips.
- 4. Each child must wear a KRK T-shirt that has the name and telephone of KRK clearly legible.
- 5. Each teacher will be easily identifiable by all children on the field trip, by wearing the same T- shirt as the children.
- 6. Each teacher supervising a field trip must have a communication device such as a cellular phone in case of emergency.
- 7. Teachers with training in CPR and first aid with rescue breathing and choking are required to be present on all field trips.

It is our goal to keep everyone safe and to have fun on field trips. We invite parents to participate in all aspects of our program and you are welcome to join us on field trips. Parents must travel in their own vehicles. All parents who wish to participate in the field trip must inform their schools Director.

Birthday Parties

Parents may bring birthday treats as long as they are store bought and do not contain any nut products. Small goodie bags may also be brought to their class as long as they do not contain food products to be handed out at the end of the day and taken home. Please plan for birthday celebrations to be held after nap time.

We suggest cupcakes or cookies rather than a sheet cake, and a light colored icing rather than dark colored icing.

Parent Advisory League

KRK welcomes parents who want to work with our Directors and be a support for our school. Our PAL program is for parents who wish to meet with a group of other parent and the management team to discuss ideas to make our school the best it can be! This meeting is held quarterly and the topics discussed change each time a meeting is held.

Water Activities

Children ages 12 months to 12 years old will have the opportunity to participate in our water park during the hot months.

What you need to bring on splash days:

- 1. Swimming suit
- 2. Towel
- 3. Water shoes
- 4. Sunscreen should be applied before the child is brought to school or you can sign a permission slip for the school to apply sunscreen provided by you, the parent, or KRK.

Severe Weather, Fire, or Emergency Situations

If an emergency situation develops such as severe weather, fire, physical damage to the building, or any other situation that poses a threat, the safety of the children is our first concern. The center is equipped with a fire alarm system and fire extinguishers. Fire drills are conducted monthly; severe weather drills and rear bus evacuations are conducted quarterly.

If there is an emergency situation and it becomes necessary to close the center, parents will be notified to make arrangements for early pickup. Parents will be notified as soon as possible of the situation and you will be required to make arrangements for your child to be picked up.

If there is inclement weather and it is determined that the center will not open, parents will be instructed through email and social media from each school.

If an emergency situation develops and it is determined that the building or premises is unsafe, the children will be transported to the KRK sister school. An email will be sent via Tadpoles to inform parents of the evacuation location and address. For a detailed copy of our Emergency Plan procedures, please ask your center Director.

Parent Code of Conduct

At Kids 'R' Kids, we are very fortunate to have supportive and friendly parents/guardians that are committed to our goal of educating children. Our parents/guardians recognize that this is a process that involves a partnership between parents/guardians, teachers, and Directors. As a partnership, we ask that our parents/guardians understand the importance of a good working relationship. For these reasons, we continue to welcome and encourage parents/guardians to participate in our school. The purpose of this policy is to provide a reminder to all parents of our school of the expected conduct so we can continue to thrive and progress in an atmosphere of mutual understanding.

Following the guidelines set out, we expect parents/guardians to:

- Respect the property of others
- Treat others with dignity and respect
- Commit to learning as much as possible about our school, planned family activities and events
- Follow the parking rules by only parking in the "Kiss & Go Lane" for five minutes or less. We also ask that you not block the fire lane and be respectful of parents and children crossing the parking lot
- Sign up and attend parent/teacher conferences twice a year, one in the spring and one in the fall. This can even happen over the phone if it is difficult to leave work
- Attend school functions such as family dinner nights, carnivals, and holiday programs. Children love to attend these activities with their parents/guardians!
- Follow the school rules as stated previously in the Parent Handbook

- Speak respectfully to teachers, staff, and other parents in front of the children, especially if there is a disagreement
- Build a bridge of acceptance and understanding, and expect children to do the same amongst different cultures represented at the school

In order to support a peaceful and safe school environment the school cannot tolerate parents/guardians exhibiting the following:

- Shouting at the school staff either in person or over the telephone
- Breeching the school's security features by sharing door codes and online access to view children
- Physically intimidating a staff member
- Defamatory, offensive, or derogatory comments regarding the school or any of its employees, children, or parents/guardians at the school on Facebook or other social sites. Any concerns you might have with the school can be made by speaking to any member of management of the Executive Director so that the issue can be dealt with in a fair, appropriate, and effective manner for all concerned. If you feel your concerns aren't being handled appropriately, you are more than welcome to contact one of our owners. All contact information can be found at the end of the Parent Handbook
- Abusive or threatening emails, text, voicemails, phone messages, or other written communication
- Disruptive behavior which interferes or threatens to interfere with the operations of the classrooms, office/lobby areas or any other area on the school grounds
- Using loud/offensive language, swearing, cursing, using profane language or displaying temper in our building, on school grounds or at school sponsored activities
- Threatening to do bodily harm to a member of the school staff, visitor, parent, and child

Inappropriate Use of Social Network Sites

Social media websites are being used increasingly to fuel campaigns and complaints against schools, Directors, staff and in some cases parents and students. We consider this use of social media as unacceptable and not in the best interests of children, our employees or the families that we serve. Any concerns must be made through appropriate channels. In the event that any parents/guardian of a child enrolled in our school is found to be posting defamatory comments on Facebook or other social network sites, the parents will be asked to immediately remove such comments.

Social Media Policy - School Policies Regarding Social Networks

Individual Accountability: Parents are responsible for the content that they post, share, and respond to online. When posting online, all information is considered representative of your views and opinions and not those of Kids 'R' Kids.

Confidential Information: Online posting and conversations are not private. Please do not share confidential information, internal school discussions, or specific information about the students, staff or other parents.

School Logos: Please do not use any school logos without permission. If you wish to promote a specific activity or event, please contact a member of management to get approval.

Staff-Parent/Guardian Relations: We recognize that many members of our community are both staff members as well as parents/guardians. With this in mind, we ask that parents join the social networking site of faculty and staff with discretion. Parents/Guardians should keep in mind that staff members are not required to accept invitations from parents/guardians and should respect each individual staff members' personal preference concerning their social networks. You should never discuss sensitive school matters with the staff or other persons using Facebook, blogs, or other social media outlets.

Privacy: When posting, even on the strictest settings, parents should act on the assumption that all postings are public domain. In microblogging, (Twitter, etc.) comments made using such media are not protected by privacy settings.

School Values: We encourage parents to set and maintain high ethical standards in the use of social networking. Staff, parents and student reflect a diverse set of customs, values and points or view. Be respectful of the opinions of others in your posts or comments. Under no circumstances should offensive comments be made about students, parents/guardians, or staff nor the school in general. If responding to someone with whom you disagree, remember to be respectful. Make sure that your criticism is constructive and not hurtful. Your posts and comments should help others build and support the school community. Do not comment or forward unsupported information or rumors.

Thank you for joining our Kids 'R' Kids family!	We look forward to helping your child(ren) grow!
I,	(please print) parents/guardians of
	(please print) agree to abide by the information any time there is a breach of this agreement, I could be held personnel, or its children and/or the dismissal of the child(ren) matter.
Parent/Guardian Signature	
Date	
Parent/Guardian Signature	
Date	
Director Signature	
Date	

Questions and Concerns

It is the goal of KRK to partner with our families in providing the best possible care and education for your child. We are very interested in answering your question and concerns. The KRK Management Team is ready and willing to assist you in this area. We are available by phone, email, or will be happy to set up a conference.

Our Management Team

Paul & Tammy Huff- Owners

paul@krkwestfrisco.com; tammy@krkwestfrisco.com

Steven Huff- Director of Business Systems steven@krkwestfrisco.com

Tiffany Halcovich- Business Manager <u>tiffany@krkwestfrisco.com</u>

Sara Brewster- Director of Marketing sara@krkwestfrisco.com

Mykka Vara- Purchasing Manager mykka@krkwestfrisco.com

Tricia Barr- Education & Training Director tricia@krkwestfrisco.com

#64 Legacy West Management Team

Karen Kepley- Executive Director karen@krkwestfrisco.com

Sondra Hannah- Administrative Director sondra@krkwestfrisco.com

Courtney Starr- Curriculum Director courtney@krkwestfrisco.com

#39 Eagle Springs Management Team

Crystal Torres- Director crystal@krkhumble.com

Christina Kidd- Administrative Director christina@krkhumble.com

Amy Feliciano- Curriculum Director amy@krkhumble.com

#36 West Frisco Management Team

Cathy Stein- Senior Director & Curriculum Director cathy@krkwestfrisco.com

Leanne Fell- Director leanne@krkwestfrisco.com

Kara Jones- Administrative Director kara@krkwestfrisco.com

#2 Kings River Management Team

Denise Love- Director denise@krkhumble.com

Sam Kilgore- Administrative Director sam@krkwhumble.com

Fran Whittaker- Curriculum Director fran@krkhumble.com